
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to
request this service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA
Beloit City Plan Commission

Wednesday, April 3, 2013 at 7:00 PM
The Forum

Beloit City Hall, First Floor
100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 20, 2013 Meeting

3. Sign Ordinance Exception – Casey’s General Store - 2240 Cranston Road
Public hearing, review and consideration of exceptions to Section 30.40(2)(c) and
30.40(2)(e) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations to allow a secondary, on-premises wall sign to
be larger than 30 square feet in area and to allow more than three (3) secondary, on-
premises signs in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at
2240 Cranston Road

4. Zoning Map Amendment - 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625, & 629 Eighth
Street; and 548 Locust Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, and R-1B, Single-
Family Residential District, to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the properties
located at 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625 & 629 Eighth Street; and 548 Locust
Street

5. Zoning Map Amendment – 501 Prospect Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, to CBD-1,
Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 501 Prospect

6. Conditional Use Permit – 501 Prospect Street
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a community
service use in a CBD-1, Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 501
Prospect Street

7. Zoning Map Amendment – 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from temporary R-1A, Single Family Residential District, to



permanent R-1A, Single Family Residential District, for the properties located at 1035 and
1041 Udell Drive

8. Zoning Map Amendment – 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-family Residential District, to M-1,
Limited Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 and 1505 Gateway
Boulevard

9. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items

10. Adjournment

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Gail Riddle in the Planning Office at 364-6700 no
later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting.

Notice Mailed: March 28, 2013 Approved: Julie Christensen
Community Development Director



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511

Page 1 of 4

MINUTES
BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Wednesday, March 20, 2013
The Forum, Beloit City Hall

100 State Street, Beloit

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
Commissioner Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:07 PM. Gail Riddle called the roll.
Present was Commissioners Faragher, Smith, Seifarth, Moore, and Kincaid. Commissioners
Ramsden, Jacobsen, and Kelly were absent

2. Approval of the Minutes of the March 6, 2013 Meeting
Commissioner Seifarth moved and Commissioner Smith seconded a motion to approve the
March 6, 2013 minutes with the change from Commissioner Smith voting ‘Yay’ and
Commissioner Ramsden voting ‘Nay’ on Agenda Item #5. The minutes were approved, with
a vote of 4-0.

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 1929 and 1999 South Royce Avenue
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located on
1929 and 1999 South Royce Avenue in the Town of Beloit

Julie Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Commissioner Seifarth moved to approve the Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map and
Commissioner Smith seconded the motion. The motion carried (4-0).

4. Certified Survey Map – Casey’s General Store – 2240 Cranston Road
Review and consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at
2240 Cranston Road in the City of Beloit

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Staff Recommendation.

Commissioner Moore moved to approve the Certified Survey Map and Commissioner
Seifarth seconded the motion. The motion approved. (4-0)

5. Conditional Use Permit – Casey’s General Store – 2240 Cranston Road
Public hearing, review and consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a limited
vehicle service use (gas station) and indoor alcohol sales in a C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston Road



Page 2 of 4

Ms. Christensen summarized the Staff Report and Recommendation.

Commissioner Smith asked how staff chose the 19 people that were notified and Ms.
Christensen answered that there is a distant requirement of 150 feet of the site for public
notices.

Commissioner Kincaid commented that he did not understand how it would be compatible
with the six residences in the area. Ms. Christensen stated that was why they were trying
to minimize the impact by putting a building along the street so that the activity would be
more inside the lot.

Commissioner Smith asked if there was a care center in the area, and Ms. Christensen said
there is an assisted living facility going in by the Charter building.

Commissioner Faragher opened the Public Hearing.

Ryan Swanson, Art Design Resources, Loves Park, Illinois, gave an overview of details of the
store and gas station. Mr. Swanson stated there would be 8 dispensers and not 10. He
said that with the large area it would give them more space to use as green space. Mr.
Swanson said that their LED downward directional lighting would be adequate but not
obnoxious or too bright. Mr. Swanson added that Casey’s feels that the use of all brick fits
well in the community but an all brick building may look a little odd.

Brian Dupree of Casey’s gave more details on the store’s structure, and he commented that
it is not a necessity for the store to be open 24 hours, but would prefer that the hours be
5:00 AM – 11:00 PM in order to be open for people going to work in the morning.

Commissioner Seifarth stated that he had safety concerns about the repositioning of the
building. Mr. Dupree commented that pumps are typically out front for a number of
reasons, some being from a marketing standpoint they would want the pumps out front,
and to hide the pumps would create a safety issue, and also that the store would be more
susceptible to drive offs if the pumps are not out front. Commissioner Faragher asked if
there was a way to work with the issue of repositioning the building. Mr. Dupree answered
that it may be possible.

Commissioner Smith said that he has concerns with the back of the store facing Shopiere.
Mr. Smith added that he had a chance to speak with someone who lived in the Park
Meadow subdivision, and they were not aware of the proposed store going in and are
opposed to the activity in the area and were concerned about the lighting and traffic.

Mr. Dupree commented that there is a lot of traffic in the area which initially attracted
them and their intent is not to bring in additional traffic, but to serve the daily local traffic.



Page 3 of 4

Commissioner Faragher asked staff if they thought there would be an increase in truck
traffic, and Ms. Christensen answered that they assumed it would be mostly local traffic.
Mr. Swanson added that there is adequate space for trucks to back in to and unload, and
noise would be screened effectively.

Commissioner Smith asked if there were any plans for the rest of the property. Mr. Dupree
stated that would be up to the developer.

Jerry Murphy, Daley Murphy Wisch, commented that when he purchased the building he
had been pretty much assured by staff that any buildings constructed would be conducive
to their setting, adding that he was a little disappointed and concerned about the driveway
opening being across from their opening. There are funeral possessions practically every
day, and traffic will be blocked. Mr. Murphy said that they did not want their people
coming out to see gas pumps. He also feels that sidewalks would be needed if Casey’s
were there.

Charlotte Heine, 2265 Shopiere, commented that the property practically touches the
corner of their house and she would like to know what the impact on them would be.

Commissioner Faragher closed the Public Hearing.

Commissioner Seifarth commented that they need to consider the hours of operation
which should be consistent with other gas stations, providing sidewalks, and the concerns
of Daley Murphy Wisch. Commissioner Faragher commented that they may need to make
sure that the driveways line up, and he is still has concerns about the alignment of the
store pumps.

Commissioner Smith stated that in his opinion he does not see too many areas around that
are not being negatively affected. He commented that the lights would be bright,
affecting residential areas beyond the immediate vicinity. Mr. Smith said that Casey’s is a
beautiful building and if the area was not so residential it would have his vote.

Commissioner Seifarth made a motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit with
conditions requiring sidewalks on Cranston and Shopiere, widening the pavement for a
decleration lane, adding additional landscaping, having the driveway line up with Daley
Murphy Wisch, removing condition #4, modifying condition #1 to make it 8 pumps instead
of 10, and the hours would be from 5:00 AM to 10:30 PM. Commissioner Faragher
seconded the motion. No board members were in favor of the CUP as amended. The
motion was denied (4-0).

6. Sign Ordinance Exception – Casey’s General Store – 2240 Cranston Road
Public hearing, review and consideration of exceptions to Section 30.40(2)(c) and
30.40(2)(e) of the Outdoor Sign Regulations to allow a secondary, on-premises wall sign to
be larger than 30 square feet in area and to allow more than three (3) secondary, on



Page 4 of 4

premises signs in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at
2240 Cranston Road

Ms. Christensen suggested laying over the Sign Ordinance Exception until City Council took
action on the Conditional Use Permit.

The Sign Ordinance Exception was laid over.

7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items
Ms. Christensen commented that the Alley Vacation for the High School was approved, the
Certified Survey for the Hospital’s Cancer Care Center was approved, and the U-Haul was
denied. The Ordinance Amendment for Reorganization of the Community Development
Department was approved.

8. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 8:28 PM.



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

 

CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 3, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: SOE-2013-01 

Applicant: Arc Design Resources 

 

Owner: Cranston Development 
Company 

Location: 2240 Cranston Road 

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood 
Commercial  

Existing Land Use: Vacant Land 

Proposed Land Use: Gas Station 

Parcel Size: 8.8202 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Arc Design Resources, Inc. has filed an application, on behalf of Casey’s General Store, Inc., for exceptions to the Outdoor 
Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to Section 30.40(2)(c) to allow a secondary, on-premises wall sign to be larger than 30 
square feet in area and to Section 30.40(2)(e) to allow more than 3 secondary, on-premises signs in a C-2, Neighborhood 
Commercial District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston Road. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant intends to construct a new gas station on the subject property contingent upon approval of the 
associated Conditional Use Permit and Certified Survey Map. 

 The applicant has proposed a total of five (5) secondary wall signs on the front façade of the proposed building. One 
secondary wall sign will be 64-square feet in area (labeled as Sign No. 2), two secondary wall signs advertising “To Go” 
(labeled as Sign No. 1 & 3) will be 13-square feet in area, and two additional secondary wall signs (labeled as Sign No. 
4 & 5) will be 24-square feet and 9-square feet, respectively. Graphics of the proposed wall signs are attached to this 
report.    

 The proposed 64-square foot wall sign will be located on the building façade in the center of the gable and is internally 
illuminated.  

 The two additional signs are 9-square feet and 24-square feet in area, and will be changeable by a snap frame border. 
Both proposed signs are well below the 30-square foot requirement for secondary signs.  

 The proposed primary sign is a freestanding ground sign with an Electronically Variable Message (EVM) sign face, will 
be 53-square feet in area, and will be located on the northeast corner of the lot near the Cranston Road and Shopiere 
Road intersection. The primary sign is well below the 150-square foot maximum that is allowed in the C-2 District.  

 The proposed sign package is the standard template used for all Casey’s General Store gas stations in the region. 
 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent 

zoning and land uses are as follows: 
  North: C-1, Office District & R-1A, Single-Family Residential District; Office (Funeral Home, Dentist Office, 

Bank, Real Estate Office, etc.) and Single-Family Residential and Park Land 
  South: C-1, Office District; (Single-Family Residential) 
  East: R-2, Two-Family Residential (Single-Family Residential) 

West: C-1, Office District; (Blackhawk Bank) 
 According to the Sign Ordinance, the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that compliance will 

create an economic hardship, the hardship is not self-created, and the exception will not undermine the purpose of the 
Sign Ordinance or the public interest. 

 The application, which is attached to this report, includes a statement relating to hardship. According to the applicant, 
compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would limit their ability to advertise their brand and services. 

 The attached Public Notice was sent to nineteen (19) nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received 
any comments or concerns. 

 Findings of Fact 
Section 30.48(2) of the Sign Ordinance outlines standards for granting an exception.  The Ordinance states that 
the Plan Commission may grant an exception if it determines that: 

a. Compliance with the strict letter of the Sign Ordinance would create an economic hardship by either 
unreasonably restricting an on-premises sign owner from advertising a business or rendering conformity 
with such regulations unnecessarily burdensome upon an owner of an on-premises sign. 

 The subject property is a corner lot with public streets on the north and east sides. Though the 
site is highly visible from Cranston Road and Shopiere Road, limiting this site to three wall signs 
would place an unnecessary burden upon the applicant.  

b. The hardship is not self-created. 

 The hardship resulting from strict compliance with the secondary, on-premises wall sign 
standards is not self-created. 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

c. The exception will not undermine the purpose of the Sign Ordinance or the public interest. 
 The proposed exceptions to the secondary, on-premises wall sign standards will not undermine 

the purpose of the Sign Ordinance.  
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The subject property’s underlying zoning district classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of this 
request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both 
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of exceptions to Section 30.40(2)(c) to allow a secondary, 
on-premises wall sign to be larger than 30 square feet in area; and to Section 30.40(2)(e) to allow more than 3 secondary, on-
premises signs in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston Road, based on the 
above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant may install one secondary, on-premises wall sign at a maximum size of 64 square feet. 
2. The applicant may install two additional secondary wall signs on the front façade of the proposed building for a 

maximum of five secondary, on-premises wall signs. The additional two wall signs may be a maximum of 30 square 
feet or under 30 square feet in area. 

3. The applicant or sign contractor shall obtain a Sign Permit before installing the signs. 
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be approved by the Plan 

Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Sign Specifications, Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Resolution. 
 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

Site Plan 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

 

Architectural Elevation Showing Proposed Signage 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx   

Proposed 64 Square Foot Wall Sign 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx   

Proposed Secondary Wall Signs (Not the Two Additional Wall Signs) 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

Proposed Primary Ground Sign with EVM Sign Face 

 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

 

 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

 

 



April 3 Staff Report, SOE,2240 Cranston Road.docx  

 



 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXCEPTIONS TO 

THE SIGN ORDINANCE FOR THE PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 2240 CRANSTON ROAD 

 

WHEREAS, the application of Arc Design Resources, on behalf of Casey’s General Store, Inc., for 

exceptions to the Outdoor Sign Regulations (the “Sign Ordinance”) to Section 30.40(2)(c) to allow a 

secondary, on-premises wall sign to be larger than 30 square feet in area; and to Section 30.40(2)(e) to allow 

more than 3 secondary, on-premises signs in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property 

located at 2240 Cranston Road, having been considered by the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, 

Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant exceptions to Section 30.40(2)(c) to allow a secondary, on-

premises wall sign to be larger than 30 square feet in area; and to Section 30.40(2)(e) to allow more than 3 

secondary, on-premises signs in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 2240 

Cranston Road in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises: 

 

Lot 2 of a Certified Survey Map as recorded in Volume 12 on Page 239 and 240 of the 

Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of 

Wisconsin.  Said parcel contains 8.82 acres, more or less. (a/k/a 2240 Cranston Road). 

 

This exception is subject to the following conditions: 
1. The applicant may install one secondary, on-premises wall sign at a maximum size of 64 square feet. 
2. The applicant may install two additional secondary wall signs on the front façade of the proposed 

building for a maximum of five secondary, on-premises wall signs. The additional two wall signs may 
be a maximum of 30 square feet or under 30 square feet in area. 

3. The applicant or sign contractor shall obtain a Sign Permit before installing the signs. 
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions of this Sign Ordinance Exception shall be approved by 

the Plan Commission. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes 
administratively. 

 

Adopted this 20
th
 day of March, 2013. 

 

 PLAN COMMISSION 

 

 

   

          Plan Commission Representative  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 ___ 

Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 3, 2013 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: ZMA-2013-05

Applicant: School District of Beloit Owner: School District of Beloit Location: 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue;
615, 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street; and
548 Locust Street

Current Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Comm. & R-1B, SF Residential
Proposed Zoning: PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District

Existing Land Use: Various Total Area: 1.0 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
The School District of Beloit has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district
classification from C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District and R-1B, Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District, for the properties located at 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street; and 548
Locust Street.

The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding area. The
adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

 North: R-1B, Single-Family Residential District; Single- and Two-Family Dwellings
 South: C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District; Commercial
 East: PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District; Hackett Elementary School
 West: R-1B & C-2; Single- and Two-Family Dwellings and Vacant Land

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning Map
Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 This request is related to the proposed expansion of Hackett Elementary School. On March 4, 2013, the City Council

adopted an Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to recommend
Institutional & Community Services and a zoning classification of PLI for the subject properties.

 The PLI district is a special purpose district that is intended to accommodate major public and quasi-public uses.
 The properties located at 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue and 615 Eighth Street are currently zoned C-2 and the

properties located at 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street and 548 Locust Street are currently zoned R-1B.
 All of the subject properties must be rezoned to PLI and the existing structures must be demolished before the school

building and grounds may be expanded as shown on the attached site plan.
 Planning staff is currently performing Architectural and Site Plan Review of this proposed expansion.
 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties. As of this writing, staff has been

contacted by one neighbor who supports the proposed Zoning Map Amendment.
 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in Section

2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.
 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a

recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

 There are residential uses to the north and west of the subject properties, and neighborhood
commercial uses to the south. The proposed expanded PLI district is compatible with these
existing uses and the proposed school expansion is expected to have a positive impact upon the
neighborhood.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 This request involves a proposed expansion of an existing PLI district, and will establish Eighth

Street as the new western boundary of the district. The expanded PLI district will be bound by W.
Grand Avenue, Eighth Street, and Locust Street, which will ensure compatibility with the
residential and commercial uses in the vicinity.



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and
 The subject properties are suitable for the uses permitted in the existing zoning classifications.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The subject properties are located within an established neighborhood that has experienced very

little redevelopment activity during the past decade.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Institutional & Community Service uses and a zoning district classification of PLI for the
subject properties. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District and R-1B, Single-Family Residential District to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District, for the properties
located at 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street; and 548 Locust Street.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Preliminary Site Plan, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion

545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue

600 Block of Eighth Street



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion

Preliminary Site Plan –
Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, Hackett Expansion



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 3, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 5 File Number: ZMA-2013-04 

Applicant: John Wittnebel 

 

Owner: Hourglass Media, LLC. Location: 501 Prospect Street 

Existing Zoning: Public Lands and 
Institution District (PLI) 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Church  Parcel Size: 0.43 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
John Wittnebel has submitted a Zoning Map Amendment Application requesting a change in the zoning district classification of 
the property located at 501 Prospect Street from PLI, Public Lands and Institution District, to CBD-1, Central Business District-
Core. The applicant has proposed to establish a mix of commercial uses permitted by right within the CBD-1 District, and 
community service uses require a Conditional Use Permit, if the request to rezone is granted.  
 
The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of this property. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows: 
  

North: PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District; Rasey House (Daughters of the Revolution) 
  South: CBD-1, Central Business District-Core; Office Building (AT&T)  
  East: PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District; Church (First Baptist Church) 

West: R-4, Moderate-Density Multifamily Residential District; High-rise Apartments (Scoville Center)  
 
 
Key Issues: 

 On March 4, 2013, the City Council approved the applicant’s request to change the future land use of the subject 
property from Institutional and Community Services to Neighborhood Commercial on the Downtown Future Land Use 
Map (Map 9) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends CBD, Central Business District as the appropriate zoning classification 
for Downtown future land use category.  

 If the Zoning Map Amendment request is granted, the applicant intends to engage in or lease space to businesses that 
operate Personal Service, Sales, and/or Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales & Service uses (e.g. café, performance 
art center, event hosting, liquor sales associated with event hosting, gift shop, etc.).These proposed uses are permitted 
by right within the CBD-1, Central Business District-Core.  

 In addition to the proposed retail uses, the applicant intends to locate a nonprofit organization (The Youth Unite) in the 
building. Nonprofit organizations are classified as a “community service” use and require a Conditional Use Permit in 
the CBD-1 District. Under the existing PLI District, the applicant would be able to establish the community service use 
by right, however, the proposed commercial uses would not be allowed. 

 A Conditional Use Permit for the proposed community service use is also being reviewed with the Zoning Map 
Amendment request. 

 The subject property is located within the College Park Historic District, which requires that the Landmarks 
Commission be notified of any land use proposals affecting a historic property and allowed an opportunity to draft a 
written or oral statement in support or protest of the proposal, which should be considered by the Plan Commission 
(Section 32.15(4) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance).  

 The applicant presented his proposal before the Landmarks Commission at its regularly scheduled meeting on 
Tuesday, March 19, 2013. At the conclusion of the presentation, the Landmarks Commission discussed the proposal 

and voiced their support for the reuse of the historic building. Essentially, the Landmarks Commission felt that the 
proposed uses would positively contribute to the College Park Historic District and surrounding neighborhood, and 
bridge the gap between Downtown Beloit and Beloit College. The Landmarks Commission supports the social and 
community functions that would occur in this historic building if it were allowed to be rezoned.   

 Staff sent the attached Public Notice to nearby property owners of the site. The Planning Division did not receive any 
comments from property owners or the public concerning this Zoning Map Amendment.   

 Findings of Fact 
Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on 
the following considerations: 

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 A number of land uses that are residential, institutional, and commercial surround the subject 
property. The land uses to the North of the subject property are the Beloit College and the Rasey 
House. The land use to the East of the subject property is a church. The land use to the South of 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

the subject properties is an office. The land use to the West of the subject properties is a high-
rise apartment complex. 

 This request amounts to a small expansion of the CBD-1 District, which will preserve the historic 
building by allowing it to be reused. Liquor sales is a permitted use within the CBD-1 District, 
however, the applicant must seek the approval of City Council before the sale of liquor may occur 
on the subject property. 

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 The subject property is adjacent to three different zoning districts. The three distinct zoning 

districts accommodate residential, institutional, and commercial uses. Adjacent to the northern 

boundary of the property is the PLI, Public Land and Institutions District. Adjacent to the eastern 

boundary of the property is the PLI, Public Land and Institutions District. Adjacent to the 

southern boundary of the property is the CBD-1, Central Business District-Core. Adjacent to the 

western boundary of the property is the R-4, Moderate-Density Multifamily Residential District.    

  

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and 

 While the property is suitable for public and nonprofit uses under the existing zoning classification 
of the PLI Districts, this district limits the capacity of the property to be fully repurposed as 
envisioned by the applicant. The proposed rezoning of the property to CBD-1 would provide an 
opportunity for the applicant to establish commercial retail uses, which would be beneficial to the 
surrounding area and the College Park Historic District.  

 Moreover, as mentioned above, the applicant desires the flexibility to engage in or lease space to 
businesses that operate Personal Service, Sales, and/or Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales & 
Service uses (e.g. café, performance art center, event hosting, liquor sales associated with event 
hosting, gift shop, etc.)These uses are prohibited in the PLI District but permitted by right in the 
CBD-1 District.  

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property. 

 No property within the general area of the subject property has been rezoned in the past decade.   
 

 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  

 The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as appropriate for Neighborhood Commercial Uses with a 
recommended zoning classification of CBD-1, Central Business District-Core.  

 
 Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both 
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The preservation and enhancement of historic structures reduces 
dependence upon fossil fuels by capitalizing on the embodied energy that is present in these structures. Our historic 
districts are compact, walkable neighborhoods that were developed when walking was a primary mode of travel. 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Based on the above Findings of Facts and the Comprehensive Plan, the Planning and Building Services Division recommends 

approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from PLI, Public Lands and Institution District 
to CBD-1, Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 501 Prospect Street. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:  N/A 

 

Attachments:  Location & Zoning Map, Historical Survey of Property, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 
 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

  



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



 

April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



 

April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 3, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 6 File Number: CU-2013-04 

Applicant: John Wittnebel 

 

Owner: Hourglass Media, LLC Location: 501 Prospect Street 

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands and 
Institutions District 

Existing Land Use: Vacant Church Parcel Size: 0.43 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
John Wittnebel has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a community service use in a CBD-1, Central 
Business District-Core, for the property located at 501 Prospect Street. A Zoning Map Amendment to rezone the property from 
PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District to CBD-1, Central Business District-Core is also being reviewed along with this 
request. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The applicant desires to operate The Youth Unite organization on the lower level (basement) of the historic building.  
 The Youth Unite organization was formed in 2008 to combat school bullying. Its mission is to prevent bullying by 

teaching strategies to school aged children on how to handle difficult social pressures, while fostering positive self-
esteem in school aged children, and creating safe places in the community. The organization accomplishes its mission 
by involving school aged children in the performing arts, music, and other educational programs. Routine seminars are 
held at local area schools which serve as a way of providing anti-bullying material to children and informing them of the 
programs offered by the organization.   

 If the Conditional Use Permit is granted, the organization will have a permanent location to operate year-round and will 
offer its programs during special events held at the property. The summer months will be the most active for the 
organization because children are on summer vacation.   

 Mr. Wittnebel intends to repurpose the historic building to establish a number of commercial uses such as a performing 
arts center, event hosting, restaurant, office rental, retail, and liquor sales that will be associated with event hosting. 
These commercial uses may be established if the property is rezoned to CBD-1, and the applicant may apply for a 
liquor license, which must be approved by the City Council. The Youth Unite organization will not hold business hours 
during any event hosting programs.  An interior floor plan showing the location of each proposed use is attached to this 
report. 

 The performing arts center and event hosting will be the principal use of the building while the community services use 
will be a secondary use. 

 Section 19.8-102(a) of the Zoning Ordinance exempts properties zoned CBD from meeting the requirements for off-
street parking. As shown in the attached site plan, there are ample public on-street parking spaces to accommodate 
traffic that may be generated by the community service use and the above-mentioned commercial uses.    

 Because of the property’s location within the College Park Historic District, the Landmarks Commission must be 
notified of any land use proposal affecting a historic property and allowed an opportunity to draft a written or oral 
statement in support or protest of the proposal, which should be considered by the Plan Commission (Section 
32.15(4) of the Historic Preservation Ordinance).  

 The Landmarks Commission met on Tuesday, March 19, 2013, and discussed the proposal and voiced their 

support for the proposed community service use proposed by Mr. Wittnebel.    
 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have not submitted any comments or concerns. 
 The attached Public Notice was sent to eight (8) nearby property owners. As of this writing, staff has not received any 

comments or concerns. 
 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent 

zoning and land uses are as follows: 
  North: PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District; Rasey House (Daughters of the Revolution) 
  South: CBD-1, Central Business District-Core; Office Building (AT&T)  
  East: PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District; Church (First Baptist Church) 

West: R-4, Mod-Density Multifamily Residential District; High-rise Apartments (Scoville Center)  
 The site plan and floor plan are attached to this report. 

 Findings of Fact 
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on 
the following considerations: 

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 The proposed community services use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, 
safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for purposes already permitted; 

 The proposed community service use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other 
property in the immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted. 

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood 
of the subject property; 

 The proposed community service use will not diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood, whereas a vacant structure could impair property values. 

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property; 

 This area is fully developed. 
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or 

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will 
cause a depreciation in property values; 

 The architectural design and site layout are compatible with the existing development in the 
immediate neighborhood and will not cause depreciation in property values. 

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve 
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use. 
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  

 While the subject property does not have off-street parking, there is an ample amount of public 
on-street parking spaces within close proximity of the property that may be used to accommodate 
any traffic generated by the community service use. 

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 The conditional uses will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  

 The Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property as appropriate for Neighborhood Commercial Uses with a 
recommended zoning classification of CBD-1, Central Business District-Core.  
 

  Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – The preservation and enhancement of historic structures reduces 
dependence upon fossil fuels by capitalizing on the embodied energy that is present in these structures. Our historic 
districts are compact, walkable neighborhoods that were developed when walking was a primary mode of travel. 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – This is an urbanized site. 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The overall redevelopment of this 
commercial property will have a positive impact on all stakeholders. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow a community service 
use in a CBD-1, Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 501 Prospect Street., based on the above Findings 
of Fact and subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes The Youth Unite organization to operate in the basement of the existing 
building on the property located at 501 Prospect Street. 

2. Alcohol may not be sold on the premises while children are attending The Youth Unite events or programming.   
3. The Plan Commission and City Council shall approve any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the 

property by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Planning and Building Services Director may approve minor 
changes administratively. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Rendering & Photo, Application, Site Plan, Floor Plan, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 
 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx  



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx  



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 

 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx 
 



Aprill 3 Staff Report, CU-2013-04, 501 Prospect Street.docx  



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 3, 2013 

 

Agenda Item: 7 File Number: ZMA-2013-06 

Applicant: Planning and Building 
Services Division 

Owners: Richard Caple & Jana 
Conway 
 

Location: 1035 & 1041 Udell Drive 

 

Current Zoning: Temporary R-1A, 
Single-Family Residential District 

Proposed Zoning: Permanent R-1A, 
Single-Family Residential District 

Existing Land Use: Single-Family 
Dwellings 

Parcel Size:  0.46 Acre 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
The Planning and Building Services Division has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning 
district classification from temporary R-1A, Single-Family Residential District to permanent R-1A, Single-Family Residential 
District, for the properties located at 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive in the City of Beloit. The septic systems serving both properties 
have failed and the properties were annexed into the City of Beloit. 
 
The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of this property and the zoning of the surrounding area.  The adjacent 
zoning and land uses are as follows: 

 North: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, Single-Family Dwelling 
 South: R1, Single-Family Residential District & R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, Single-Family Dwellings 

(Town of Beloit & City of Beloit, respectively) 
 East: R1, Single-Family Residential District, Vacant Land (Town of Beloit) 
 West: DH, Development Holding District, Agricultural 

 
The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning Map 
Amendment. The R-1A, Single-Family Residential District is primarily intended to accommodate single-family detached 
dwellings on moderate to large-size lots. 
  
Key Issues: 

 On January 22, 2013, the City Council adopted an Ordinance annexing 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive into the City of 
Beloit and assigning a temporary zoning district classification of R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, to both 
properties. After a property is annexed into the City, the Plan Commission must initiate a Zoning Map Amendment to 
assign a permanent zoning classification. 

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a 
recommendation based on the following considerations: 

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 The Udell Drive neighborhood is comprised of single-family detached dwellings on small to 
moderate-size lots. 

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property; 

 As shown on the attached Location & Zoning Map, the majority of the properties located on Udell 
Drive and the immediate vicinity, within the City of Beloit, are located in an R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District. The Udell Drive lots that remain in the Town of Beloit are zoned R1, Single-
Family Residential District. 

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and 

 The subject properties are used to accommodate single-family dwellings, which is a suitable use 
under the existing temporary R1-A District and the permanent R1-A District zoning classifications. 

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property. 

 There were two annexation-related Zoning Map Amendments to permanent R-1A, Single-Family 
Residential District, for Udell Drive properties in the mid to late 1990s. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for these properties.  This land use 
category is intended for existing and planned groupings of single-family detached residences that are served by public sanitary 
sewer and water systems. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx 

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5. 

 

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both 
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines) 
 

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems - N/A 
 

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently - N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Based on the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning and Building Services Division 

recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from temporary R-1A, Single-
Family Residential District to permanent R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the properties located at 1035 and 1041 
Udell Drive. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 

 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx  

 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx   



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA-2013-06, 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive.docx  

 
 

 

 

 

 



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: April 3, 2013 Agenda Item: 8 File Number: ZMA-2013-03

Applicant: Andrew Janke, o/b/o Beloit
Economic Development Corporation

Owner: Beloit Economic Development
Corporation

Location: 1500 & 1505 Gateway
Boulevard

Current Zoning: R-3, Low-Density
Multi-Family Residential District
Proposed Zoning: M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District

Existing Land Use: Agricultural &
Vacant Land

Parcel Size:
1500: 17.7 Acres
1505: 42.5 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Andrew Janke, on behalf of the Beloit Economic Development Corporation, has submitted an application for a Zoning Map
Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-Family Residential District to M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 & 1505 Gateway Boulevard.

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning Map
Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant intends to market the subject properties for Business Park development (e.g. office, light industrial).
 The R-3 district is intended to accommodate low-density multi-family (at a density of up to 25 dwelling units per acre)

and other low-density residential development. The M-1 district is intended to accommodate industrial, manufacturing,
and commercial activities that do not create appreciable nuisances or hazards.

 The property located at 1500 Gateway Boulevard is 17.7 acres and the property located at 1505 Gateway Boulevard is
42.5 acres. Both properties have direct access to existing infrastructure along Gateway Boulevard.

 On March 18
th
, the City Council adopted an Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map to

recommend Business Park uses for the subject properties.
 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of the subject properties and the zoning of the surrounding

area. The predominant surrounding land use is agricultural, and the property to the east of the 1505 parcel is located in
the Town of Turtle within the Boundary Adjustment Area. There is an existing multi-family residential development to
the northeast of the 1500 parcel. The 1500 parcel has frontage on Gateway Boulevard and the improved northern
segment of Apex Drive. The 1505 parcel has frontage on Gateway Boulevard and the dedicated-but-unimproved
southern segment of Apex Drive. The southern segment of Apex Drive will likely be constructed when the 1505 parcel
and/or the industrial lands to the south & southwest are developed.

 This application is being considered in accordance with the Zoning Map Amendment procedures contained in Section
2-300 of the Zoning Ordinance.

 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties and the Town of Turtle. As of this
writing, staff has not received any comments.

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject properties are located in the center of the Gateway Business Park, which includes

major employers such as Kettle Foods, Staples, and Kerry Ingredients. Although the surrounding
properties remain in agricultural use, they are expected to develop as a mix of office and light
industrial projects within the next decade. The M-1 classification is compatible with existing and
planned uses within the general area.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject properties are adjacent to a massive M-1 district that includes the northern half of the

Gateway Business Park, and a massive M-2 district that includes the southern half of the
Gateway Business Park. M-1 is more appropriate for the subject properties than M-2 given the
existing residential zoning districts (PUD, R-3, and R-1A) that comprise the Eagles Ridge
neighborhood to the north of the subject properties. There is a City-owned 9.6-acre parcel to the
north of the 1505 parcel that will remain as open space due to topography & surface water, which
will serve as a natural buffer between the 1505 parcel and the Eagles Ridge neighborhood.



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and
 The subject properties are suitable for the uses permitted in the R-3 district, but the applicant

intends to market the subject properties for office & light industrial development.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The Gateway Business Park and Eagles Ridge neighborhood have developed in a slow-but-

steady fashion over the past decade. Recent nearby projects include a major addition to the
Morse Group/Amp Electric building and major additions to the Kettle Foods processing and
distribution facilities.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends Business Park uses and a zoning district classification of M-1, M-2, or C-1 for the
subject properties. This proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section
66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-3, Low-Density Multi-
Family Residential District to M-1, Limited Manufacturing District, for the properties located at 1500 & 1505 Gateway Boulevard.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard

From W side of 1500, Looking NE

From Gateway/Apex Int., Looking E at 1505



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard



April 3 Staff Report, ZMA, 1500-1505 Gateway Boulevard


	Call to Order and Roll Call
	Approval of the Minutes of the March 20, 2013 Meeting
	Sign Ordinance Exception - Casey's General Store - 2240 Cranston Road
	Zoning Map Amendment - 545 & 549 W. Grand Avenue; 615, 619, 625, & 629 Eighth Street; and 548 Locust Street
	Zoning Map Amendment - 501 Prospect Street
	Conditional Use Permit - 501 Prospect Street
	Zoning Map Amendment - 1035 and 1041 Udell Drive
	Zoning Map Amendment - 1500 and 1505 Gateway Boulevard

